
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST 

AGENDA

AGENDA Monday, 23 January 2017 commencing at 3.00 pm

Committee Room 2 - Wallasey Town Hall

1. 15:00  APOLOGIES INTRODUCTIONS, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

2. 15:00  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)

To consider any matters arising from the minutes that are not dealt with elsewhere on 
the agenda.

3. 15:10   INFORMATION: UPDATE ON IMPROVEMENT JOURNEY INCLUDING 
PROGRESS ON WIRRAL 2020 PLEDGES - JULIA HASSALL 

Powerpoint presentation

4. 15:30 VOICE OF THE CHILD - PARTICIPATION STRATEGY - LINDSEY 
DAVIDSON AND FIONA O'SHAUGHNESSY (Pages 7 - 12)

5. 15:50  DEEP DIVE - INTEGRATED FRONT DOOR/ MASH - TERRI 
CARTWRIGHT/LIZ DAVENPORT (Pages 13 - 26)

6. 16:30 PARTNER UPDATES - OPEN FORUM 

7. 16:50 FORWARD PLAN 

8. 16:55 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

Date and time of next meeting:

15th May at 3.00pm.  Birkenhead Town Hall (please note different venue).



This page is intentionally left blank



1161

Page 1

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD

MINUTES

Minutes of the meeting held on 26th September 2016
PRESENT: 
Councillor T Smith (Chair), Councillor W Clements, Councillor C Meaden, 
J. Hassall, P Sheridan, A Davies, J Monty, N Johnson, K Podmore, J Owens, V Harrison, J 
Graham, S Taylor, G R White.

IN ATTENDANCE: 
J Power

1.0  INTRODUCTIONS and APOLOGIES 
Cllr Clements welcomed the members and noted apologies had been received from 
Kerry Crichlow.  

2.0  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Cllr Meaden declared that her daughter worked at a team office for children and young people.

3.0  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (16 May 2016) and ACTIONS ARISING
The minutes were checked for accuracy and were confirmed as a true reflection of the 
meeting with no matters arising that are not included on this agenda.

It was resolved that the minutes were taken as accurate.

4.0  OFSTED INSPECTION OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES, INCLUDING 
SAFEGUARDING, FEEDBACK AND NEXT STEPS.

Julia Hassall gave a presentation outlining the key themes from the inspection findings.  

Overall Ofsted found both areas judged to be ‘inadequate’ this was the overall 
safeguarding inspection and the Local Safeguarding Board. Within the overall main 
inspection, children needing help and protection, care leavers and leadership, 
management and governance were all ‘inadequate’, children looked after and Adoption 
were found to be ‘requiring improvement’.  

It was noted by the Inspectors that senior leaders were aware of the issues, including 
recruitment and retention of staff at every level in the organisation, and in the majority of 
areas were already working to address issues. 

There were no instances during the inspection where any child had to be removed from 
home as a consequence of what inspectors found, however there were children who 
were for example, living households where there was cumulative neglect and the level 

Page 1



2

of children’s vulnerability was not properly recognised or understood and they were not 
receiving the right level of support or services. 

Ofsted highlighted that the Children in Care Council as a real strength and that most 
care placements are stable and of good quality.  Adoption performance is improving.

The Key findings below were the main issues around partnership working:

 Thresholds and consistency need to be better understood by LA and partners.
 Ensure that all performance management information is based on accurate data, 

and that managers, leaders, elected members use it effectively to measure and 
inform service improvement

 Performance management, quality assurance, scrutiny and oversight by 
managers and politicians must lead to timely practice improvements

 Strategic plans to develop joint commissioned services are at an advanced 
stage, but joint commissioning across the spectrum of children’s services is not 
yet apparent, indicating slow progress by the local authority and clinical 
commissioning group.

The 26 actions from the report are being prioritised for action.  Immediate steps include:
 

 Recruitment of a new Head of Children’s Services and more Social Workers and 
developing ways to retain them.

 An Improvement Board, consisting of LA and partners, has been set up.  An 
independent Chair is being recruited.

 The DfE will recruit an independent advisor to assist the LA to improve.
 The action plan has been drafted and resources are being put into place with the 

aim of improving Children’s Services to be good.

The findings are a very serious matter for everyone in Wirral, including Children’s 
Services, the Council and its partners, and we must all take responsibility for these 
findings and working together to make the necessary improvements with pace.

K Podmore asked what level of confidence was there that the right people can be put in 
place quickly.  J Hassall replied that salaries, job descriptions and conditions are being 
reviewed now to ensure that the right people are recruited in some key positions, in the 
meantime carefully selected interim managers and staff who can demonstrate the right 
quality of practice are being brought in to cover vacancies. Cllr Smith added that we 
need to change our recruitment in order to get it right.  He added that whilst two thirds of 
inspections nationally are less than good because the inspection framework has 
changed, this inspection highlights that Children’s Services need to be put at centre 
stage. K Podmore commented that there will still be the same financial pressures as 
before. 
 
P Sheridan asked how the Improvement Board fits with the Safeguarding Board and the 
Wirral Children’s Trust.  J Hassall responded that the Improvement Board will oversee 
the implementation of the Improvement Plan and for example, hold the Safeguarding 
Board to account for delivering their 7 key actions. G R White added that these bodies 
will report to the Improvement Board.  P Sheridan then asked if the Independent Chair 
has been recruited yet and J Hassall said that an individual has not yet been chosen, 
but a number of people with different backgrounds are being considered.

Page 2



3

K Podmore asked what the link will be in practice.  GR White replied that the 
Improvement Board will look at all areas and that the Children’s Trust and the Children’s 
Joint Commissioning Group will be overseeing areas such as Health and Wellbeing, 
Early Help etc.  The Improvement Board will look for evidence that there is strong 
strategic ownership across all partners for all areas of improvement.  K Podmore asked 
how the Children’s Trust can hold these groups to account as we only meet 3 times a 
year. J Hassall responded that this will be looked at in the new Terms of Reference later 
in the agenda.  

J Owens asked what would happen in the Safeguarding Board now that the Chair has 
stepped down.  J Hassall said that there is a strong Vice Chair, Police Superintendent 
Tracy Hayes who will be leading the Board until a new Chair is recruited. The new Chair 
will have to be independent and will hold Children’s Services and partners to account.  
We are using a recruitment company to ensure we find the right person.  J Owens then 
asked how the membership of the Safeguarding Board can be made more independent 
in the meantime.  J Hassall said that she is no longer chairing the Executive Board, we 
are also looking to have other partners chairing Board sub groups, so there is greater 
ownership across the partnership and greater independence from the Council in the 
Board’s functioning.

Cllr Clements asked how confident the Council is that these changes can be made in a 
timely manner.  Cllr Smith replied that work is already ongoing on the most urgent 
changes.  The LGA improvement advisor has reconfirmed what the role of the Lead 
Member for Children’s Services is in securing these improvements.  J Hassall said that 
the LGA and ISOS have produced a helpful document and that as Director she now 
feels she is getting the right interim people in post now until we recruit permanently. 
Interim Managers are able to come in fresh “tell it as it is” and confront the issues and 
support Children’s Services in having those difficult conversations.  GR White added 
that what is happening to children and families must be challenged.  K Podmore 
commented that we need to receive information in a format we can understand in order 
to be able to challenge it effectively.  Cllr Clements queried how we can address the 
difficulties in bringing about the necessary culture change.  J Hassall said that there are 
many changes to be made and all the workforce needs to understand clearly what has 
to happen and to be accountable.  K Podmore asked if we have the processes to 
challenge and enforce if things are not being done. J Hassall replied that we do have 
processes and must make sure minimum standards are applied in the context where all 
staff and managers have the right tools and environment to do their job. Cllr Meaden 
raised a concern about the number of agency Social Workers being used.  J Owens 
added that we need everyone to realise the professional expectations of all workers at 
all levels and that those workers then meet those expectations.  Cllr Smith commented 
that we need to actively scrutinise that everyone is doing all the basics according to 
process.  P Sheridan asked what teeth the Children’s Trust Board and the Wirral 
Safeguarding Board have to hold organisations to account.  J Hassall said that we must 
challenge each other, hold each other to account and escalate concerns if issues 
remain unresolved. We must work together to make sure we share the same high 
ambitions for children.   P Sheridan and K Podmore then both asked what can actually 
be done to challenge what we know is not right and, if we do challenge and nothing 
changes as a result, what can be done.  GR White responded that Board members 
need to understand who various groups are accountable to eg Schools are accountable 
to Governors, DfE, Ofsted etc.  They also must be prepared to use those 
accountabilities when necessary.  J Hassall added that we need to ensure that 
everyone is properly trained to carry out their roles; that everyone plays their part in 

Page 3



4

keeping children safe.  J Monty also added that everyone needs examine their own 
areas of practice and see how we can make a difference.  

In conclusion J Hassall said there is a lot to do, we must work together to get it right for 
children, and that she is confident that we can do this.

It was resolved that The Board noted the report.

5.0  CHILDREN’S TRUST REFRESHED GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS.

J Monty introduced K Crichlow’s report on the Review of the Children’s Trust Terms of 
Reference, the proposed Draft Terms of Reference and the Recommendations to the 
Board.

J Owens asked if School Governors should be included in the proposed revised 
membership and it was agreed that they should be.

J Graham asked if Public Health should be included in the proposed revised 
membership and it was agreed that they should be.

K Podmore commented that there needs to be a commitment from the membership that 
they will attend all 3 meetings.  Cllr Smith said that a letter can be sent out in his name 
re the expectations to attend.  J Owens said that substitute representatives should 
attend if any representative cannot attend and Cllr Smith added that any substitutes 
must be properly briefed.

Cllr Smith asked if frontline workers should be invited to be heard.  J Hassall replied that 
work is being done with frontline practitioners re improvements, including meetings, 
allowing opportunity for anonymous feedback, etc.  Something could be built into one of 
the deep dive sessions to hear the voice of practitioners.  GR White added that they will 
be included in annual stakeholder events.  J Hassall said that there will be meetings 
with frontline practitioners where then can air their views directly and openly and maybe 
a distillation of those voices can be brought to these meetings.  

J Owens said that it would be useful to know the statistics re numbers of vacancies and 
staff in post, turnover and retention rates, salaries, sickness etc.  K Podmore that it 
would be useful to have this in summary format with some benchmarking figures.

J Hassall said that she will work with the Improvement Board to formulate the Data Set 
for each of the Boards and what they will be responsible for scrutinising.

S Taylor asked if the board will receive updates of what is being done in the Children’s 
Joint Commissioning Group and J Hassall said that they would.

It was resolved that the Board made the following decisions:

1. To approve and adopt the revised Terms of Reference with the agreed 
amendments to the Membership. 

2. That a small planning group will be established, meeting bi-monthly, to agree 
the Children’s Trust work plan and the deep dive focus.

Page 4



5

3. Following further work on the protocol between the Children’s Trust, The 
Wirral Safeguarding Children’s Board and the Health and Well-being Board 
these be presented to the next Wirral Children’s Trust meeting for adoption.

6.0  THEMATIC FOCUS:  CREATING LOCALITY BASED HUBS FOR EARLY HELP 
AND PREVENTION.  FROM AMBITION TO ACTION

Gladys Rhodes-White gave a presentation on this meeting’s thematic focus of Early 
Help.

Wirral needs to ensure that Early Help is being effective:
  

 It must be soon enough
 The LA needs to ensure that we have the right services and are responsive
 Which partners are appropriate to be part of the local community footprint, the 

Wirral footprint and the Merseyside footprint?
 What are the cultures and behaviours that we need to address in order to make 

Early Help effective?  

How do we move from ambition to reality re locality based services?  How do we move 
from what we are doing to what we need to do?

 Rather than developing an LA blueprint we need to work with partners to develop 
the blueprint.

 Think about how best to place resources.
 Think about how to shift focus from Statutory provision to Third Sector/Voluntary 

Sector provision.  We know that for families there is often less stigma with the 
voluntary sector and it can be more enduring and sustainable.

 The LA must have the commitment to bring together the right partners.
 Look at collective resources across all partners and decide how to commission 

effectively.
 Consider how to move away from what we currently do and instead move to 

locality based working. 
 Consider pilot schemes for certain areas of work.

J Hassall added that there will be another event in early December to follow up the 
previous event around joint commissioning and partnership working.  The Children’s 
Trust will all be invited.

Cllr Clements asked how we can do this whilst still funding the old ways of working.  GR 
White replied that it will be a massive challenge and the LA will need to invest to save.  
Also we need to look for opportunities to find different monies across partnerships.  By 
jointly commissioning we can make efficiency savings with no overlap.  If young people 
have appropriate early help they can be retained on Wirral rather than in expensive out 
of borough placements.  J Hassall added that “Children on the Edge of Care” service is 
now managed by Deborah Gornik, rather than Social Care, to try and retain them in 
Wirral, meet their needs early and out of care.  GR White said that at the Children’s 
Panel we are seeing the results of the lack of early help impacting on LA resources at a 
later stage; and there is an impact on other partners eg CAMHS.  

Page 5



6

N Johnson said that all commissioned services will need to understand thresholds and 
to be supported in understanding risk and when a young person needs to be moved to a 
different service.  S Taylor agreed with this and added that knowledge needs to be 
shared amongst both statutory and voluntary services.  The Voluntary sector also needs 
to be supported around understanding and managing risk.  

It was resolved that: The Board noted the report.

7.0  ANY OTHER BUSINESS

There was no other business.

CLOSE
As there was no other business the meeting closed at 17.00 hrs.

DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS

23rd January at 15.00hrs.

Page 6



1

WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 23 January 2017

Young People’s Engagement and Participation

1.0 Background

1.1 Wirral has a strong record of involving children and young people in 
developing service delivery and in local democratic and community 
processes. In order to continue to ensure that young people are able to 
engage and fully participate in decision making and that services and 
organisations routinely involve them the Engagement and Participation 
framework will stay under review.  

2.0 Introduction

2.1 The Framework comprises of three main elements, namely:
 Youth Engagement Strategic Champions - A virtual team of key 

elected members and chief officers across the private and public 
sectors and the voluntary, community and faith sector.

 Youth Engagement Reference Group – a reference group of officers 
who are have been trained in engaging young people and who can be 
brought together quickly to respond to need, co-ordinate children and 
young people's participation and engagement activities.

 Youth Voice Group – an overarching young people’s group, with close 
links to ongoing work with Children Looked After (CLA), including the 
Children in Care Council.

3.0 Current Position

3.1 Youth Engagement Strategic Champions
The Framework for Young People’s Engagement and Participation was 
launched at a ‘Champion Event’ on the day of the Youth Parliament in 
November 2014.  The event enlisted a virtual team of officers from the private, 
public, voluntary, community and faith sectors to ensure Wirral’s leaders fully 
support and champion positive youth engagement in Wirral. The event was 
attended by strategic managers from Children and Young People’s Services, 
Police, Fire and Rescue Service, Public Health and NHS.

3.2 Youth Engagement Reference Group
3.2.1 The inaugural meeting of the Reference Group was held in April 2015, the 

group of officers and staff have been meeting bi-monthly since this time.  
Attendance is reflective of the wider partnership, with representatives from 
organisations such as Barnardo’s, Magenta Housing, Merseyside Police and 
Wirral Girl Guides as well as members of the Youth Voice Group. The group 
were instrumental in co-ordinating the 2015 and 2016 Youth Voice 

Page 7



2

Conferences and Parliaments. The group have identified the following as 
priorities:
 The revision of the Charter of Participation and associated action plan
 The Youth Voice Group recruitment
 Promoting future United Kingdom Youth Parliament elections
 The planning of the 2017 Youth Voice Conference 

3.3 Youth Voice Group
3.3.1 This is an open group which has been meeting for about two years.  Since its 

inception the group has been involved with a number of initiatives, including:
 2014, 2015 & 2016 Youth Conference planning, delivery and 

evaluation (see Appendix 1 for the 2016 Youth Voice Conference 
Report)

 2014, 2015 & 2016 Youth Parliament debates and evaluation
 Framework Champion launch in 2014
 Wirral Youth Zone consultations
 Various consultation focus groups linked to Public Health strategies 
 Staff interview panels 
 Elected member training 
 Consultation on youth engagement in relation to child sexual 

exploitation (CSE) and creating a CSE performance piece called 
‘Exploitation’ 

 Advising CAHMS regarding the self-harm and young people 
 Creating and performing a piece which presented the model for the 

Healthy Wirral launch. 

3.3.2 Future priorities for the group include:
 Recruitment to ensure representation from a wide range of youth 

organisations across Wirral
 Links to the four locality Youth Forums
 Planning for the 2017 Youth Conference and Parliament
 Inspecting youth provision

3.3.3 In order to ensure synergy with the Children in Care Council (CICC) – Youth 
Voice Group members attended CICC meetings and formal links have now 
been established with the Participation and Engagement Team, formally 
known as the Inclusion Team.  The group will also develop strong links with 
the newly appointed LSCB Youth Engagement Worker.

4.0 Children Looked After 

4.1 Children in Care Council (CICC)
4.1.1 The CICC meet once a month to ensure the views and ideas of children and 

young people looked after are listened to by those making decisions about 
them.  They are involved in many interesting projects that make a difference 
for young people who are looked after.  For example, the Fostering DVD and 
the 2016 CICC Conference (see Conference report Appendix 2). 

Page 8



3

4.2 Care Leavers Council (CLC) 
4.2.1 The creation of a separate Care Leavers Council (CLC) for young people 

aged 16-25 has now been introduced.  This was the decision of the 
Participation and Engagement Team and the current groups of CICC 
members.  The new format generates wider discussions and opens up 
opportunities for greater team working whilst allowing Care Leavers to 
concentrate on issues that affect them.

4.2.2 The CICC and CLC are both involved with the fostering team and a young 
person now sits on the fostering panel.  The groups are also involved with 
foster carer training, i.e. Life Skills and Connected Carers.

4.3 Children Looked After Events
4.3.1 A number of high profile events have been held recently including:

 CLA Success and Achievement Awards:
o This event is growing every year, with nearly 300 people attending 

the event in 2016. 200 of them were young people aged 0-18, plus 
parents, carers and staff.

 Listen to Me Awards
 Young Inspectors
 Take Over Day
 Care Leavers Week
 CICC Conference

4.4 Recruitment and Selection 
4.4.1 Monthly training is provided to young people and monthly interview dates are 

in place for young people to interview potential new staff members.  Flexibility 
is offered to allow interviewing of senior positions, i.e. Independent Chair 
Safeguarding Children’s Board, Deputy Director.

4.5 Research/Surveys
4.5.1 The CICC and CLA have been involved in a number of research projects and 

surveys, examples of which include:
 Corporate Parenting Strategy 
 Health Passport
 Wirral Children’s Services – Top three priorities for 2017 
 Restructure (Young People and Foster Carers)
 Care Leavers Association – Health
 Housing
 Liverpool John Moore’s Research Study
 From Care to Independence

Page 9



4

 Children’s Commissioner - Help at Hand
 LGBT

4.6 Website
4.6.1 http://therightsideofcare.com/ is Wirral Council’s online resource for local 

children and young people who are looked after. It is also a valuable resource 
for their carers and the professionals working with them. The site offers 
support and advice on a vast range of subjects: from adoption and fostering; 
to ‘in care’ advice, making a complaint and leaving care.  
http://therightsideofcare.com/  also provides information to help young people 
get involved with the Children in Care Council.  It provides contact information 
for key staff and office bases at the council, as well as a map of each office 
and the bus services that stop there. Launched in 2014, The Right Side of 
Care has had over 5,000 visits to the site in the last year and over 3,000 
individual users. 

4.6.2 Young people can keep up-to-date with the latest news from Children’s 
Services via the site, which also includes news from the Teenwirral website. 
Recent additions to therightsideofcare.com include a games section, plus 
corporate parenting and advocacy information. These sections are to be 
developed further in 2017, alongside the possible development of an app or 
user account facility within the site.

5.0 Current Engagement and Participation Developments

5.1 Young People’s Advisory Group (YAG)
A paper was taken to the Youth and Play Service Advisory Group (YAPSAC) 
in 2015 which recommended that YAPSAC be reviewed.  This review has 
now been completed and, in future, the newly named Young People’s 
Advisory Group (YPAG) will be an integral part of the Framework for Young 
People’s Engagement and Participation, providing young people with 
meaningful opportunities to regularly engage with elected members in a safe 
and supportive environment.

5.2 Children and Young People’s Reference Group
5.2.1 A children and young people’s reference group for the Improvement

Board has recently been established.  The group has been developed through 
the Youth Voice Group and is made up of young people with a range of 
experiences, including young people from the Children in Care Council.  

5.2.2 The group have already met on two occasions and, as well as getting to know 
each other, they are already bringing some really excellent ideas forward 
about how they will support and influence developments.  The group will meet 
again in January 2017 to start to work up their action plan to achieve their 
goals.

5.2.3 The group have been considering how to reach out and gain the views of 
wider groups of young people across the Borough and through schools; how 
to get more involved in workforce development, particularly developing staff 
members skills in working with and engaging vulnerable young people; how to 

Page 10



5

become involved in scrutinising progress being made to improve services for 
children and young people and intent to report by involving local young 
reporters.

5.2.4 The group have fed back their views with regard to the Ofsted inspection and 
are looking forward to seeing the published improvement plan early in the 
New Year.

5.2.5 The group have looked at creative ways to meet key people in the 
improvement journey and are eager to work with them going forward.  The 
group have a good deal of energy and passion and are keen to see 
improvements for children and young people.

5.3 Junior Safeguarding Children’s Board
5.3.1 The Wirral Children’s Safeguarding Board’s (WSCB) Engagement Officer has 

been working to identify opportunities for engaging with children and young 
people through schools and current frameworks.  She will also be consulting 
with young people from existing groups such as the Children in Care Council 
and the Youth Voice Group to identify their priorities for keeping safe.  

6.0 Recommendations:

6.1 Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.

Appendices:

Appendix 1 – Youth Voice Conference Report 2016 

YOUTH VOICE 
CONFERENCE REPORT 2016.docx

Appendix 2 – Children in Care Council 2016 Conference Report

Conference 2016 
261016.docx

Report Authors:  Contact:
Lindsay Davidson Phone:  0151 666 4380
Senior Manager, Targeted Services Email:  lindsaydavidson@wirral.gov.uk

Fiona O'Shaughnessy Phone: 0151 678 1936
Inclusion Officer Email: fionaoshaughnessy@wirrral.gov.uk

Page 11

mailto:lindsaydavidson@wirral.gov.uk
mailto:fionaoshaughnessy@wirrral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 15:00  Minutes of the Last Meeting
	4 15:30 Voice of the child - Participation Strategy - Lindsey Davidson and Fiona O'Shaughnessy

